
SCHOOL OF CHEMISTRY & MOLECULAR BIOSCIENCES 
COURSEWORK STUDENTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Meeting 3/20 3 September 2020 For general publication 
 

1 

Present: Mr Zakaria Ahmed, Miss Julia Buczynski (in the chair), Mr Marley Chia, Mr Eugene Dragut, 
Ms Tammie Fair, Ms Lucy Holyoak (minutes), Miss Susanna Huang, Miss Harsha Joshi 
(observer/minutes), Miss Cassandra Koumouris, Miss Christina Lee (via Zoom), Mr Lucas 
Ngo Dee, Miss Khristine Valdellon, Associate Prof Nick West, Dr Simon Worrall. 

 
Apologies: Prof Joanne Blanchfield 
 
Absent: Miss Varsha Kommajosyula 
 
 
1. Welcome and apologies: 
 

Julia Buczynski welcomed members to the third CSAG meeting of the year and noted Joanne 
Blanchfield had informed Lucy that she was unable to attend, while Varsha Kommajosyula was absent.  
 
 
2. Confirmation of the minutes of the meeting held 8 May 2020: 
 

The minutes of the meeting held 8 May 2020, having been circulated to group members 
and published on the School website with SCMB constituent students notified via email that the minutes 
were available, were taken as read and were confirmed by those who had been present. 
  
 
3.1  Election of Co-Secretaries: 

 
Members noted the roles of co-secretary held by Harsha Joshi and Varsha Kommajosyula. 
 

3.2   COVID-19 Student feedback – COVID-19 Semester One Student Experience Report: 
 
Lucas Ngo Dee noted that the Semester One Student Experience Report and survey did not 

accurately represent the overall student experience, specifically the lost laboratory experience resulting 
from laboratory closures and online classes.  

 
Susanna Huang noted that it was likely that only positive feedback had been submitted in 

the survey as students were often reluctant to provide negative feedback and theorised that this may 
have been a reason for the reports for not being as reflective of the student experience. Susanne 
reiterated that the difficulties of transitioning to online practicals had not been covered by the report.  

 
Julia noted that the Student Experience Report was not an accurate reflection of the overall 

student experience in semester one. 
 
Marley Chia noted that the report did not consider the complaints received regarding 

ProctorU.  
 
Julia advised that completion of the survey had been optional and many students had not 

had time to report on their negative experiences.  
 
Marley reported that ProctorU had been considered by some students as very 

unprofessional due to the unacceptable standard of the service. Marley noted that students had been 
advised to contact the Course Coordinator if they had any issues.  

 
Julia noted that Course Coordinators could not provide the assistance required.  
 
Marley noted that there were UQ students that had been collecting information on student 

experiences and were looking to compile a report with Faculty. 
 
Simon Worrall advised that Course Coordinators had limited scope to assist students.  
 

ACTION 



SCHOOL OF CHEMISTRY & MOLECULAR BIOSCIENCES 
COURSEWORK STUDENTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Meeting 3/20 3 September 2020 For general publication 
 

2 

Eugene Dragut noted that international students were less willing to provide negative 
feedback. Eugene advised that Proctor U has been reluctant to accept foreign identification.  

 
Lucas noted that only 41% of students said they had positive experiences during the 

semester one mid-semester survey and that this was likely a more accurate representation of the student 
experience in semester one.  

 
 

3.2 Undergraduate ‘Discipline Mixer’ event: 
 
Eugene Goakes and Harsha Joshi were invited to comment on whether there were any 

updates to how the Undergraduate ‘Discipline Mixer’ event would run in semester two. 
 
Harsha noted that the Chemistry Club had just participated in the ‘careers week’ and were 

planning on running a Summer Project Discipline Mixer after the mid-semester break.  
 
Julia enquired whether the event would be held in person or online.  
 
Harsha noted that the event would be held online but an on-campus event would be 

preferred if there was a change to restrictions.  
 
 

4. Other business/open discussion: 
 

4.1 COVID-19 check-in / Student feedback 
 
Lucas noted that the restrictions on laboratory access that had affected many SCMB 

postgraduate students had been easing and acknowledged that it was still a concern for students who 
were overseas and unable to travel back to UQ to commence a major research project.  

Lucas noted that all research project applications were considered on a case by case basis, 
and that many students enrolled in the Research Extensive Masters programs were concerned about 
whether they would be able to commence their major research project if they were unable to return to 
Australia. Lucas advised that overseas students required more support. 

 
Simon stated that it was largely dependent on the project supervisor and that it was difficult 

to predict what may happen in the future. Simon stated that the Faculty was attempting to be as flexible 
as possible in these uncertain times. Simon mentioned that cohort sizes as well as the nature of the 
program determines how laboratory based projects will be affected.  

 
Marley mentioned that there was a lack of surety for students as to what was being planned 

going forward. Marley enquired whether it was possible to take a similar approach to semester one again 
in semester two by sending students check-in emails.  

 
Tammie Fair asked what information would be helpful to the students.  
 
Marley reported that the check-in emails provided reassurance and ensured that open 

communication was maintained between the students and the School. Marley noted that students would 
like to know more of what was going on behind the scenes and to facilitate a sense of connectivity 
between staff, students and administration.  

 
Tammie noted that the School was currently preparing for several delivery methods in 

semester one next year. Tammie encouraged students to contact the School via email at 
enquiries@scmb.uq.edu.au if they had any questions. Tammie undertook to speak with Joanne 
Blanchfield about sending a check-in email to students.  

 
Marley noted that the content of the SCMB wide student email should mention that the 

situation is changing, and the School is flexible and adaptable to changes.  
 

TAMMIE 

mailto:enquiries@scmb.uq.edu.au


SCHOOL OF CHEMISTRY & MOLECULAR BIOSCIENCES 
COURSEWORK STUDENTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Meeting 3/20 3 September 2020 For general publication 
 

3 

Julia noted that the hard work completed by SCMB to aid students should be communicated 
so that students were aware of the work going on in the background and gain a sense of reassurance.  

 
Susanna agreed with this sentiment and said that receiving an email was reassuring in 

semester one.  
 
Tammie noted that this feedback was very helpful. 
 
Lucas enquired whether the School could host an online event for a general information 

session. Lucas noted that it could be similar to the online Honours event that had been organised by the 
School.  

 
Tammie noted that it may be possible to organise a drop-in style online event in semester 

two for students to ask questions.  
 
Marley noted that there was a need for students to learn experimental skills they had 

missed in semester one due to COVID-19 restrictions. 
 
Julia reported that the course CHEM2054 became completely online following week four of 

semester one and that this was a core foundation course for laboratory skills. Julia advised that there 
would be boot camps held by the School during the mid-semester break. Julia noted that a trial session 
of the boot camp had been organised for the students that completed CHEM2054 in semester one. Julia 
noted that a lot of course coordinators had modified their semester two courses to accommodate 
students who had not yet gained laboratory skills.  

 
Harsha noted that students were keen for laboratory experience.  
 
Julia reported that students found it difficult to write laboratory reports in semester one 

without having physically completed the experiment. Julia acknowledged that the lecturers changed their 
course quickly to facilitate the transition to online learning and provided videos of laboratory 
demonstrations.  

 
Simon noted that the School could benefit from the experience gained throughout the 

previous semester to improve the online learning experience going forward.  
 
Julia invited the first year student representatives to comment on their experience during 

COVID-19.  
 
Christine Lee requested that CHEM1200 lectorials to be provided earlier in the week to 

allow more preparation time for the next week (via Zoom).  
Christine also noted that POD notes were inconsistent with CHEM1200 lectorials. Christine 

reported that more Chemistry Podium consultation sessions would be appreciated to provide students 
with a more interactive experience.  

 
Zakaria Ahmed noted that his SCMB courses ran smoothly and the semester two course 

CHEM1200 had incorporated laboratory skills that were lost from CHEM1100 in semester one. Zakaria 
noted that some courses from other schools that would typically involve a lot of laboratory work and field 
trip experiences had been impacted more because there were less opportunities to catch-up on those 
skills and experiences. Zakaria noted that the courses STAT1201 and BIOL1040 had been well received by 
first year students.  

 
Julia agreed with Zakaria and noted that the first year of university would have been much 

more difficult for new students as a result of COVID-19.  
 
Cassandra Koumouris reported that BIOL1040 had been well received by students and the 

laboratories were set to reopen in the following few weeks. Cassandra reiterated that CHEM1200 was 
reteaching CHEM1100 skills lost in semester one. Cassandra noted that pre-exam Zoom sessions offered 
by Course Coordinators remain highly unsuccessful with very low numbers of student peers attending.  

LUCY & 
TAMMIE 

LUCY  



SCHOOL OF CHEMISTRY & MOLECULAR BIOSCIENCES 
COURSEWORK STUDENTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Meeting 3/20 3 September 2020 For general publication 
 

4 

 
Julia agreed with this sentiment and asked if there were any suggestions to assist first year 

students with adjusting to university life.  
 
Cassandra suggested that more social events could be held with SCMB.  
 
Online examinations/ProctorU 
Eugene and Cassandra enquired about the ProctorU privacy leak and whether UQ had 

released a statement. 
 
Julia noted that UQ did release a statement.  
 
Zakaria agreed that there had been a lot of concerns about ProctorU amongst first year 

students. 
 
Tammie noted that there had been four SCMB courses that used ProctorU in semester one 

and that no semester two SCMB courses would be using ProctorU.  
 
Julia noted that students may be more likely to enrol in courses that do not have ProctorU 

exams listed on the ECP. Julia explained that SCMB soft-invigilated exams run by School tutors may result 
in a more positive experience for students.  

 
Harsha enquired about time adjustments for external students.  
 
Eugene enquired whether international students could be informed of the soft invigilated 

exam process along with the time adjustments. 
 
Tammie noted that this information was included in the examination timetable email. 

Tammie encouraged students to read emails thoroughly from start to finish.  
 
Marley enquired whether Course Coordinators could communicate these updates on 

Blackboard.  
 
Tammie noted that the School should not communicate examination information to 

students as this information comes from a central examinations department to ensure equity and 
accuracy.  

 
Marley reported that students had been told that online exams were harder as they were 

open book.  
 
Simon noted that Course Coordinators needed to ensure that questions could not be 

Googled.  
 
Susanna noted that she had found the exams more engaging and acknowledged that the 

exams had been challenging as they were more reliant on problem solving. Susanna noted that the exams 
had been different but not harder.  

 
Marley enquired how students could provide feedback on the final examinations as the 

course SECaTs run before examinations.   
 
Nick West advised that feedback should be sent to Course Coordinators or the School. 
 
Julia stated that feedback provided during the exam would ensure more accurate 

responses, however students would rather spend the remainder of their time checking answers rather 
than answering surveys/feedback free text fields.  

 
Members agreed with this statement.  
 

LUCY & 
TAMMIE  



SCHOOL OF CHEMISTRY & MOLECULAR BIOSCIENCES 
COURSEWORK STUDENTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Meeting 3/20 3 September 2020 For general publication 
 

5 

Tammie noted that students should email the Course Coordinator with feedback so that 
this could be discussed during the end of semester Examiners’ meeting.  

 
Marley noted that students did not usually want anything to do with an exam following its 

conclusion. Marley enquired whether there was an option to provide feedback immediately after the 
exam in a separate portal.  

 
Harsha agreed with Marley and suggested that there could be a feedback survey open 

within the exam folder. Harsha suggested this should only be open for a day or two as students were 
unlikely to return to the exam folder after the date of the exam.   

 
Julia noted that students had been finding it difficult to practice for exams as previous 

exams were no longer relevant study resources. 
 
Khristine Valdellon noted that she had been unsure of the standard of answer that was 

expected because the questions had been different to past exams. Khristine commented that in one of 
her microbiology courses she was able to understand the distinction between previous standard exams 
and the online exam as the course coordinator had explained the difference to students prior to the exam.  

 
Simon noted that the nature of questions had changed.  
 
Khristine agreed and noted that the online exams focus on applying knowledge rather than 

memorising, which may be different to how the previous exams had run.  
 
Julia agreed and reported that some courses require more complex-thinking and problem 

solving such as BIOC2000. Julia stated that the Course Coordinator could notify students in advance and 
point out the differences regarding the nature of the questions.  

 
Simon agreed with Julia, and noted that Course Coordinators were still learning how to 

create appropriate questions for online examinations. 
 
Nick noted that connecting with Course Coordinators was important. Nick noted that many 

Course Coordinators do offer additional exam information sessions but student attendance and 
participation is poor. Nick noted that the School would share this feedback and encourage Course 
Coordinators to share information regarding the exams with the students.  

 
Eugene noted that there had been inconsistencies between the amount of information 

provided across courses.  
 
Nick noted that each Course Coordinator should provide information regarding the exams 

and their format. 
 
Harsha recommended that more application based questions, such as those included in 

tutorials/online quizzes, could benefit students as students were likely to check these resources if they 
know that past examination resources are not relevant. 

 
Student wellbeing 
Eugene noted that student wellbeing and mental health was still a concern. Eugene noted 

that COVID-19 continues to impact students, particularly those on the Government Job Keeper or Job 
Seeker allowances.  

 
Khristine noted that she had a lot more time throughout the week in semester one and had 

found it difficult to keep up with and adjust to semester two demands and accommodate travel times for 
flexible delivery classes. 

 
Julia noted that general information to acknowledge hardship could be included in the 

check-in email.  
 

LUCY & 
TAMMIE  

NICK & 
JOANNE 



SCHOOL OF CHEMISTRY & MOLECULAR BIOSCIENCES 
COURSEWORK STUDENTS ADVISORY GROUP 

 
Meeting 3/20 3 September 2020 For general publication 
 

6 

Tammie agreed and noted that students should know that there is help available. Tammie 
encouraged students to contact the School if they needed help. Tammie reiterated that students are not 
alone, and it is not unusual for students to ask for help.  

 
Simon agreed and noted that many staff in the School had completed Mental Health First 

Aid training.  
 
 
4.2 Art Exhibition: 
 
Harsha noted that the UQ Chemistry Club had been invited to participate in an art exhibition 

following virtual market day and may require some support and materials from the School. 
 
Lucy asked Harsha to email her the details.  
 
4.3 Acknowledgement of feedback: 
 
Julia thanked the SCMB team for their continued efforts and noted that the students had 

recognised the Schools efforts this year. Julia thanked everyone for the feedback and contribution to the 
discussion.  
 
 
5. Next meeting: 
 

The next meeting is now scheduled for Friday 16 October at 12pm in room 76-228 (Building 
76, Room 228).  
 

HARSHA 
& LUCY 


